Public Document Pack

COUNCIL MEETING
SUMMONS
Members of Fareham Borough Council are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of
the Council to be held in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Fareham, on
THURSDAY, 14 JUNE 2018, commencing at 6.00 pm.

The Mayor: Councillor Susan Bayford
The Deputy Mayor: Councillor Pamela Bryant
Councillor Keith Barton

Councillor Michael Ford, JP

Councillor Ian Bastable

Councillor Jim Forrest

Councillor Susan Bell

Councillor Tiffany Harper

Councillor Fred Birkett

Councillor Carolyn Heneghan

Councillor Jonathan Butts

Councillor Connie Hockley

Councillor Trevor Cartwright, MBE

Councillor Leslie Keeble

Councillor Louise Clubley

Councillor Gerry Kelly

Councillor Shaun Cunningham

Councillor Kay Mandry

Councillor Peter Davies

Councillor Simon Martin

Councillor Tom Davies

Councillor Sarah Pankhurst

Councillor Steve Dugan

Councillor Roger Price, JP

Councillor Tina Ellis

Councillor Katrina Trott

Councillor Jack Englefield

Councillor Nick Walker

Councillor Keith Evans

Councillor Seán Woodward

Councillor Geoff Fazackarley

Page 1

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 16)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 26 April
2018 and 10 May 2018.

3.

Mayor's Announcements

4.

Executive Leader's Announcements

5.

Executive Members' Announcements

6.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct.

7.

Presentation of Petitions
To receive any petitions presented by a member of the Council.
Note: any petition so presented will be dealt with in accordance with the Council’s
petition scheme.

8.

Deputations
To receive any deputations of which notice has been given.

9.

Reports of the Executive
To receive, consider and answer questions on reports and recommendations of the
Executive. Minutes of the meetings of the Executive and a schedule of individual
Executive member decisions are appended.
(1)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 14 May 2018 of Executive (Pages 17 - 20)

(2)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 4 June 2018 of Executive (Pages 21 - 24)

(3)

Schedule of Individual Member and Officer Delegated Decisions (Pages 25 26)

10. Report of the Scrutiny Board
To receive, consider and answer questions on reports and recommendations of the
meeting of the Scrutiny Board.
(1)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 17 May 2018 of Scrutiny Board (Pages 27 - 32)

11. Reports of Other Committees
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and to consider and answer
questions on any reports and recommendations made.

Page 2

(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 25 April 2018 of Planning Committee (Pages
33 - 38)

(2)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 10 May 2018 of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee (Pages 39 - 40)

12. Questions under Standing Order 17.2
To answer questions pursuant to Standing Order 17.2 for this meeting.
13. Motions under Standing Order 15
Members will be informed, prior to the meeting, of any motion duly notified in
accordance with Standing Order 15 but received after print and dispatch of the
agenda.
(1)

Notice of Motion dated 04 June 2018 received from Councillors L Keeble and
Mrs T L Ellis
“We propose that Fareham Borough Council writes to Hampshire County
Council in respect of their weed spraying service.
Hampshire County Council undertake an annual weed spray service on
Hampshire highways and paving as part of their weed control programme.
The frequency of the spraying, together with the fluctuations in weather is
resulting in uncontrolled weed growth. Apart from this making the Borough
unsightly, it is also causing significant damage to the roads and pavements
which in turn leads to far greater cost to the tax payer in repairs.
We would like this Council to support our Motion and write to Hampshire
County Council asking them to increase the weed spraying frequency on
highways and pavements within the Fareham Borough area”.

14. Appointments to Committees
To make any changes in appointments to the seats on committees in accordance
with the wishes of political groups. Such appointments will take effect from 15 June
2018.

P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer
www.fareham.gov.uk
6 June 2018

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Page 3

Tel:01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Page 4

Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the
Council
Date:

Thursday, 26 April 2018

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
G Fazackarley
(Mayor)
Mrs S M Bayford
(Deputy Mayor)
Councillors:

K A Barton, B Bayford, Miss S M Bell, F Birkett, Mrs M Brady,
Mrs P M Bryant, J E Butts, T M Cartwright, MBE,
Mrs L E Clubley, S Cunningham, Mrs T L Ellis,
J M Englefield, K D Evans, M J Ford, JP, J S Forrest,
Mrs C Heneghan, Mrs C L A Hockley, L Keeble, A Mandry,
Mrs K Mandry, S D Martin, Ms S Pankhurst, R H Price, JP,
D L Steadman, Mrs K K Trott, N J Walker and
S D T Woodward

Page 5

Council

1.

26 April 2018

PRAYERS
The meeting opened with prayers led by the Reverend Ian Meredith of St
Mary’s Church, Portchester.

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P J Davies and Miss T
Harper.

3.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the Mayor be authorised to sign as a correct record the
minutes of the Council meeting held on 23 February 2018.

4.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor thanked everyone who had supported his charity events during the
past year. The Mayor was very pleased to be able to make contributions to
the excellent work carried out by Sam’s Haven and The Moving On Project.
The Mayor welcomed Sergeant Connor Bomford to the Council Meeting.
Connor was thanked for his service and presented with a Certificate to mark
the end of his service as the Mayor’s Cadet.
The Mayor also passed on his thanks and best wishes to the Retiring
Councillors Bayford, Mrs Brady, Mandry and Steadman and presented long
standing service plaques of recognition to Councillors Bayford, Mandry and
Steadman.

5.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Executive Leader passed on his thanks and best wishes to those
Councillors retiring this year for the many years service they have given.
The Executive Leader then gave an update on the key financial performance
at Daedalus, commenting that Members would be aware that in 2015, the
Council acquired the land at Daedalus in order to preserve the future of the
airfield and to create many new opportunities in the sectors of marine, aviation,
aerospace engineering and advanced manufacturing. The Executive Leader
commented that Members would also recall that if the Council had not
intervened at that point, then the airfield would have closed.
The Executive Leader announced that on 22 nd May, Members will have the
opportunity to see the progress made at Daedalus, when a Member visit will
be hosted there. Since the Council took ownership, infrastructure has
Page 6

Council

26 April 2018

improved dramatically with new roads and services to support the business
park developments. Eleven new hangars have been built, which provide high
quality space for both aviation businesses and clubs. The two new industrial
buildings are now the headquarters of two local businesses, and the Council
facilitated the arrival of the Civil Engineering Training Centre (CETC – digger
school) in partnership between CEMAST and the private sector. A significant
refurbishment of the air traffic control tower is nearing completion and as
Members are aware, Fareham Innovation Centre has been a huge success
story. On the visit, Members will have an opportunity to see the newly
completed extension which features superb new conference facilities.
In the first three years of operation, this significant investment in Daedalus has
laid the foundations for the site to be self-sustaining in the long term. The
Executive Leader advised Members that a comprehensive 3-year review
report will be considered by the Executive later this year, but in the meantime,
the following financial performance figures demonstrate how the investment is
paying off:
Since 2015,
 Fareham Innovation Centre income has grown to £477,000 p.a. and this
is set to almost double next year;
 Property income has grown from £88,000 to £322,000. This is set to
grow to £1m in 2018/19 from all the new property built;
 Investment in managing, operating and redeveloping the whole site has
grown from £1.1m to £1.6m, but at the same time, the costs recharged
to airport tenants has remained relatively stable;
 Around 600 jobs have been created in the Enterprise Zone.
 The overall cost to the Council is on a downward trend and in the first 3
years, 92% of the costs have been met by external grants. Provided
the Council continues to pursue the current strategy, and in line with the
very ambitious vision for Daedalus, 2018/19 is forecast to be the first
year when the airport and business parks achieve cost neutrality.
The Executive Leader commented that there is still a lot of work to do to put
Daedalus on a stable footing for the long term and to achieve all the other
ambitions that were set out in the Council’s Vision, but he hoped that all
Members would agree that the bold decision taken in 2015 to acquire the site
is now starting to pay dividends.
6.

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS
Police and Crime Commissioner
The Executive Member for Health and Public Protection announced that he
attended the recent meeting of the Hampshire Police and Crime Panel. The
prime purpose of the meeting was to discuss the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s budget following the decision by the Panel at the last meeting
that any increase in his precept (Council Tax) should be spent on policing. At
the recent meeting, the Commissioner made the point that 98.3% of his budget
went on policing. However, he still insisted that he needed to allocate
£440,000 from his budget for essential extra staff, which would include a new
assistant Police and Crime Commissioner.
Page 7

Council

26 April 2018

The Executive Member also reported that at the meeting, the Commissioner
was given the result of the confidence ballot sent to all Police Officers in
Hampshire. The result showed that 1551 (98%) gave a ‘No Confidence’ vote.
The Commissioner responded by saying that he hoped everybody knew he
had the greatest respect for Police Officers’ views and would now need to take
this into account.
The Executive Member advised that he had challenged the Commissioner at
the meeting on the new location of Fareham Police Station, as the current one
is due to shut in 2019. Even though the Commissioner knew that this question
would be asked, he replied that this could be covered outside of the meeting.
The Executive Member responded by expressing the frustration that he and
the public felt with the lack of progress with this issue and the poor
communication surrounding it. The last communication Fareham had on this
subject was last August and nothing has been heard since. The Executive
Member has urged the Commissioner to resolve this problem as quickly as
possible for the benefit of both the Police Force and the public.
Finally, the Executive Member reported that it was agreed that the Panel
would take on extra scrutiny work to look at Mr Lane’s effectiveness.
Access All Areas
The Executive Member was pleased to report that, once again, Access All
Areas for 11-16 year olds will be held this year from the 24 July through until
the 23 August and will include activities such as large inflatables, sailing, a
number of inflatable pool sessions at both the Holly Hill Leisure Centre and
Fareham Leisure Centre, scuba diving and driving school.
7.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

8.

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS
There were no petitions presented at this meeting.

9.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations given at this meeting.

10.

REPORTS OF THE EXECUTIVE
(1)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 20 February 2018 of Executive

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Executive held on Tuesday 20 February
2018 be received.

Page 8

Council

(2)

26 April 2018
Minutes of meeting Monday, 5 March 2018 of Executive

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Executive meeting held on Monday 05
March 2018 be received.
(3)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 9 April 2018 of Executive

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Executive meeting held on Monday 09
April 2018 be received.
(4)

Schedule of Individual Executive Member and Officer Delegated
Decisions

RESOLVED that the Schedule of Individual Member and Officer Delegated
Decisions be received.
11.

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY BOARD
(1)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 22 March 2018 of Scrutiny Board

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Scrutiny Board held on Thursday 22
March 2018 be received.
12.

REPORTS OF OTHER COMMITTEES
(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 21 February 2018 of Planning
Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday
21 February 2018 be received.
(2)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 21 March 2018 of Planning Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday
21 March 2018 be received.
(3)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 27 March 2018 of Licensing and
Regulatory Affairs Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee held on Tuesday 27 March 2018 be received.
(4)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 12 March 2018 of Audit and Governance
Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee meeting
held on Monday 12 March 2018 be received.
13.

QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 17.2
Question by Councillor Mrs C L A Hockley:

Page 9

Council

26 April 2018

Would you please advise how FBC are working with the police for zero
tolerance to pavement parking which is not only dangerous, particularly to
Mum's with prams and folk with disabilities, but is anti-social.
Response by the Executive Member for Health and Public Protection:
Pavement Parking can be a problem as it can cause an obstruction and be
dangerous for other vehicles as well as for legitimate pavement users. It is a
difficult area to control, but where there are restrictions in place to control it
(e.g. yellow lines) then Fareham Borough Council's CEO’s will respond to
complaints and also target problem areas during routine patrols, and if
necessary issue Penalty Charge Notices. Unfortunately, where there are no
restrictions to prevent parking on the Highway, FBC CEO’s have no powers to
deal with these situations - they are entirely down to the Police who have the
powers to deal with vehicles that are parked dangerously or causing an
obstruction. The Police and the Council have agreed to work together with
zero tolerance for pavement parking.
Hampshire County Council own the highway including pavements, therefore
any physical restrictions being placed to prevent parking on pavements would
have to be done via HCC.
14.

MOTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 15
There were no Motions under Standing Order 15 submitted for this meeting.

15.

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES
There were no appointments or changes to committees made at this time.

16.

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMMES 2018/19
Following a discussion on this item, and upon the recommendations being put
to the vote, it was declared CARRIED.

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.34 pm).

Page 10

Minutes of the
Council
Date:

Thursday, 14 June 2018

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Mrs S M Bayford
(Mayor)
Mrs P M Bryant
(Deputy Mayor)
Councillors:

K A Barton, Miss S M Bell, F Birkett, J E Butts,
T M Cartwright, MBE, Mrs L E Clubley, S Cunningham,
P J Davies, S Dugan, Mrs T L Ellis, J M Englefield,
K D Evans, G Fazackarley, M J Ford, JP, J S Forrest,
Miss T G Harper, Mrs C Heneghan, Mrs C L A Hockley,
L Keeble, J G Kelly, Mrs K Mandry, S D Martin,
Ms S Pankhurst, R H Price, JP, Mrs K K Trott, N J Walker
and S D T Woodward

Page 11

Council

1.

14 June 2018

PRAYERS
The meeting was opened with Prayers led by Reverend Gavin Foster of St
John’s Church, Locks Heath.

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors I J Bastable and T
Davies.

3.

HONORARY ALDERMEN
Members were reminded that this was a special meeting of the Council
convened in accordance with Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972
to consider the investiture of office of Honorary Aldermen to Brian Bayford,
Arthur Mandry and Dennis Steadman.

4.

BRIAN BAYFORD
The following motion was proposed by Councillor S D T Woodward and
seconded by Councillor T Cartwright:
“That Brian Bayford be admitted to the Roll of Honorary Aldermen to the
Borough of Fareham in recognition and acknowledgement of his eminent
services to the Council between 2002 to 2018.”
In reaching its decision, the Council took account of Brian Bayford’s service as
a Councillor which included time as Mayor of Fareham between May 2010 and
May 2011.
During this time, Brian Bayford was the Executive Member for Health and
Environment, the Executive Member for Streetscene and the Executive
Member for Health and Housing.
During his time as Councillor, Brian Bayford was also Chairman on many
Committees and Panels including the Health and Environment Panel from
2002 to 2004, the Appeals Committee from 2003 to 2004, the Community
Review Panel from 2009 to 2010 and the Health and Housing Policy
Development and Review Panel from 2015 to 2017. He was also ViceChairman of the Scrutiny Board from 2009 to 2010 and the Housing Policy
Development and Review Panel from 2017 to 2018.
The Council also recognised the contribution made by Brian Bayford as a
Ward Councillor for Park Gate since he was first elected in 2002 and as a
representative of the Borough Council at many local organisations concerned
with the benefit of Fareham and the welfare of its citizens.

Page 12

Council

14 June 2018

At the invitation of the Mayor, Councillors Mrs K K Trott, Mrs C L A Hockley
and P J Davies addressed the meeting.
On being put to the meeting, the motion was declared CARRIED unanimously.
RESOLVED that Brian Bayford be admitted to the Roll of Honorary Aldermen
of the Borough of Fareham in recognition and acknowledgment of his eminent
services to the Council from 2002 to 2018.
Upon the motion being carried, the Mayor presented Alderman Bayford with a
formal document commemorating the grant of office, together with his badge
of office. Alderman Bayford was invited to sign the Roll of Honour, duly
witnessed by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.
Alderman Bayford addressed the Council in reply.
5.

ARTHUR MANDRY
The following motion was proposed by Councillor S D T Woodward and
seconded by Councillor T Cartwright:
“That Arthur Mandry be admitted to the Roll of Honorary Aldermen to the
Borough of Fareham in recognition and acknowledgement of his eminent
services to the Council from 1995 to 2018.”
In reaching its decision, the Council took account of Arthur Mandry’s service
as a Councillor which included time as Mayor of Fareham between May 2001
and May 2002.
Arthur Mandry was elected Deputy Leader of the Council between 1999 and
2001, and again between 2002 and 2012.
He was also Executive Member for Planning and Transportation, between
1999 and 2006 and Executive Member for Public Protection, between 2006
and 2012.
During his time as Councillor, Arthur Mandry was also Chairman on many
Committees and Panels including Planning and Transportation Committee
from 1999 to 2001, the Crime and Community Safety Panel from 1999 to 2001
and the Planning and Development Policy Development and Review Panel
from 2014 to 2018 and was also Vice-Chairman on the Planning Committee
from 1999 to 2018.
The Council also recognises the contribution made by Arthur Mandry as a
Ward Councillor for Hill Head since he was first elected in 1995 and as a
representative of the Borough Council at many local organisations concerned
with the benefit of Fareham and the welfare of its citizens.
At the invitation of the Mayor, Councillors N J Walker, J Forrest and Mrs C L A
Hockley addressed the meeting.
On being put to the meeting, the motion was declared CARRIED unanimously.
Page 13

Council

14 June 2018

RESOLVED that Arthur Mandry be admitted to the Roll of Honorary Aldermen
of the Borough of Fareham in recognition and acknowledgment of his eminent
services to the Council from 1995 to 2018.
Upon the motion being carried, the Mayor presented Alderman Mandry with a
formal document commemorating the grant of office, together with his badge
of office. Alderman Mandry was invited to sign the Roll of Honour, duly
witnessed by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.
Alderman Mandry addressed the Council in reply.
6.

DENNIS STEADMAN
The following motion was proposed by Councillor S D T Woodward and
seconded by Councillor T Cartwright:
“That Dennis Steadman be admitted to the Roll of Honorary Aldermen to the
Borough of Fareham in recognition and acknowledgement of his eminent
services to the Council between 2000 to 2018.”
In reaching its decision, the Council took account of Dennis Steadman’s
service as a Councillor which included time as Mayor of Fareham between
May 2012 and May 2013.
During his time as Councillor, Dennis Steadman was Vice-Chairman on the
Public Protection Panel from 2007 to 2012 and then again from 2013 to 2014,
he was also Vice-Chairman of the Health and Housing Policy Development
and Review Panel from 2014 to 2016.
Dennis Steadman was a member of many other Committees, Panels and
Boards of the Borough Council, most notably the Leisure and Community
Policy Development and Review Panel and the various Housing Committees.
The Council also recognises the contribution made by Dennis Steadman as a
Ward Councillor for Fareham South since he was first elected in 2000 and as a
representative of the Borough Council at many local organisations concerned
with the benefit of Fareham and the welfare of its citizens
At the invitation of the Mayor, Councillors Mrs C L A Hockley, J M Englefield
and P Davies addressed the meeting.
On being put to the meeting, the motion was declared CARRIED unanimously.
RESOLVED that Dennis Steadman be admitted to the Roll of Honorary
Aldermen of the Borough of Fareham in recognition and acknowledgment of
his eminent services to the Council between 2000 to 2018.
Upon the motion being carried, the Mayor presented Alderman Steadman with
a formal document commemorating the grant of office, together with his badge
of office. Alderman Steadman was invited to sign the Roll of Honour, duly
witnessed by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.
Page 14

Council

14 June 2018

Alderman Steadman addressed the Council in reply.
The Mayor gave her congratulations to the Aldermen and then concluded the
meeting.

(The meeting started at 5.30 pm
and ended at 6.25 pm).

Page 15

Agenda Item 9(1)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 14 May 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
K D Evans, Planning and Development
Miss S M Bell, Leisure and Community
F Birkett, Housing
S D Martin, Streetscene
Also in attendance:
R H Price, JP, for item 10(1)

Page 17

Executive

1.

14 May 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies given for this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 09 April
2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Executive Leader welcomed the new Executive Members, Councillor F W
Birkett and Councillor S D Martin, to the meeting. The Executive Leader also
requested that his thanks be placed on record to the outgoing Executive
Members, Councillor Miss T Harper and Councillor Mrs K Mandry, for their
hard work and contribution to the Streetscene and Housing Executive
portfolios.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

7.

MINUTES / REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
There were no references from other Committees or Panels presented at this
meeting.

8.

CONFIRMATION OF APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO AREAS OF
EXECUTIVE RESPONSIBILITY
The Executive Leader confirmed that his decision to appoint Executive
Members to the areas of responsibility, as advised at the Annual Council
meeting on 10 May 2018, for the municipal year 2018/19 was as follows:
Planning and Development – Councillor K D Evans
Leisure and Community – Councillor Mrs C L A Hockley
Housing – Councillor F W Birkett
Health and Public Protection – Councillor T M Cartwright, OBE
Streetscene – Councillor S D Martin
Policy and Resources – Councillor S D T Woodward.
The Executive Leader also advised that responsibility for Building Control
would move from the Planning and Development Portfolio to Heath and Public
Protection.
Page 18

Executive

9.

14 May 2018

EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS
RESOLVED to appoint Executive Members to the following bodies for
2018/19:(i) Portchester Crematorium Joint Committee – Councillors K D Evans and
S D Martin (N.B in the past, the Executive has not appointed
‘substitute’ members to this joint committee.
However, the
Executive may, if it so wishes, authorise other members of the
Executive to act as deputies).
(ii) Fareham and Gosport Building Control Member’s Panel – Councillor T
M Cartwright, MBE.
(iii) Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH)
As PUSH is a formal Joint Committee, the following appointments
are required to be made by the Executive for 2018/19
(a) Joint Committee representatives – Executive Leader
Councillor S D T Woodward and Deputy Executive Leader,
Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE
(b) Sub-Group
Meetings
–
The
Borough
Council’s
representatives are the appropriate Executive Members.
(c) Meetings with Key Consultees and similar Consultation
Meetings – Councillors S D T Woodward and T M Cartwright,
MBE.
(iv) CCTV Partnership – Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE
(v) Fareham and Gosport Environmental Health Partnership Panel –
Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE.
(vi) Aspect Building Communities Ltd – Councillor F W Birkett.
(vii)

10.

Joint Member Shared Coastal Management Board – Councillor K D
Evans and Councillor P J Davies.

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY

(1)

End of World War 1 Centenary Commemoration

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor R H Price, JP, addressed
the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) agrees that a Commemoration stone be erected in West Street to
commemorate the centenary of the end of World War 1;

Page 19

Executive

14 May 2018

(b) agrees that eight Silent Soldier sculptures be erected across the
Borough in the five previous CAT areas;
(c) chooses the following sites in each of the old CAT areas, from the
options presented in the briefing paper, to locate Silent Soldier
sculptures at Fareham Train Station, Holy Trinity Church War Memorial,
Portchester Memorial Column, Titchfield Parish Rooms, Stubbington
Green War Memorial, St Paul’s Church Sarisbury Green and Warsash
War Memorial;
(d) agrees that one Silent Soldier sculpture be kept in reserve; and
(e) agrees that the project will be funded from 2017/18 underspends to the
sum of £10,250.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.08 pm).

Page 20

Agenda Item 9(2)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 4 June 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
F Birkett, Housing
Miss S M Bell, Leisure and Community
K D Evans, Planning and Development
S D Martin, Streetscene
Also in attendance:
Mrs K K Trott, for items 9(1), 10(1) and 11(1)

Page 21

Executive

1.

4 June 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies given for this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 14 May
2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Executive Leader announced that he will be holding a conference on
rough sleeping which will bring together various collaborative agencies and
organisations that work together to tackle homelessness and rough sleeping
across the Borough. The event will raise awareness of the help and support
services available and will present advice and guidance to those wanting to
help and support individuals experiencing increasingly complex and diverse
issues.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Mrs K K Trott declared a personal interest when she addressed the
Executive on Item 9(1) as she is the Council’s appointed deputy representative
to the Wallington Village Community Association and is also a member of the
Association.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

7.

MINUTES / REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
There were no references from other Committees or Panels presented at this
meeting.

8.

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY

(1)

Provision of Overflow Parking for Burridge Village Hall

RESOLVED that the Executive approves:
(a) a budget allocation of £12,000 from the Whiteley Capital Receipts to
fund the installation of the overflow parking spaces; and
(b) the drafting of an agreement with Burridge Community Association to
formalise expectations of management by the Village Hall of access to
this overflow parking.
Page 22

Executive

9.

4 June 2018

STREETSCENE

(1)

Streetscene Depot Building Improvements

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed
the Executive on this item.
Mrs K K Trott declared a personal interest in this item as she is the Council’s
appointed deputy representative to the Wallington Village Community
Association and is also a member of the Association.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees a budget of £220,000 to refurbish and
remodel the Streetscene office and staff accommodation at the Council’s
Broadcut Depot, Wallington.
10.

HEALTH AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

(1)

Night time closure of Fareham Shopping Centre multi-storey car park
and Osborn Road multi-storey car park

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed
the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) approves the overnight closure of Osborn Road multi-storey car park;
(b) approves the overnight closure of Fareham shopping centre multistorey car park;
(c) delegates authority to the Director of Planning and Regulation, following
consultation with the Executive Member for Health and Public
Protection, to undertake consultation on and implement any necessary
minor amendments to the Traffic Regulation Order; and
(d) delegates authority to the Director of Planning and Regulation following
consultation with the Executive Member for Health and Public
Protection to award a contract(s) up to the overall budget approved for
this project.
11.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

(1)

Disposal of Property at Holly Hill Mansion - Asset Disposal

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed
the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive:

Page 23

Executive

4 June 2018

(a) confirms that Holly Hill Mansion is surplus to the Council’s
requirements; and
(b) delegates authority to the Director of Finance and Resources, following
consultation with the Executive Leader, to accept the most
commercially advantageous bid for the disposal of the asset.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.27 pm).

Page 24

Agenda Item 9(3)
Tabled Item 9


SCHEDULE OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER
& OFFICER DELEGATED
DECISIONS
The following decisions have been made by individual Executive Members since those
reported at the meeting of Council on 26 April 2018:

Executive Leader Delegated Decision:
Attendance at ‘Making Garden Communities, Great Communities’ Conference
(Decision 2017/18 – 2025)
RESOLVED that approval is given for the Executive Member for Planning and
Development to attend the ‘Making Garden Communities, Great Communities’
Conference taking place on 24 May 2018 at St-Martin-in-the-fields, Trafalgar
Square, London.

Streetscene:
Supply and Delivery of Bedding Plants
(Decision 2017/18 - 2031)
RESOLVED that a contract be awarded to the tenderer who submitted the most
economically advantageous tender for the provision of bedding plants, hanging
baskets and troughs, as ranked 1st in the confidential appendix to the report.

Page 25

Agenda Item 10(1)

Minutes of the
Scrutiny Board
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Thursday, 17 May 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room, Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor G Fazackarley (Chairman)
Councillor M J Ford, JP (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors:

P J Davies, Miss T G Harper, Mrs C L A Hockley, J G Kelly,
Mrs K Mandry and Ms S Pankhurst (deputising for Mrs P M
Bryant)

Also
Present:

Page 27

Scrutiny Board

1.

17 May 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology of absence was received from Councillor Mrs Bryant.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Scrutiny Board meeting held on 22 March
2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman explained to members of the Scrutiny Board and members of
the public the purpose of the meeting and how it was going to be run.
It was explained that the agenda for this meeting includes an item to consider
a compliant about the way a petition has been handled.
The Council’s Petition Scheme includes a provision for the Scrutiny Board to
be asked to conduct a review of the steps taken by the Council in handling a
petition, if the Lead Petitioner feels that the petition has not been dealt with
appropriately.
A complaint was received on 21 February 2018, asking for the Scrutiny Board
to conduct such a review about the handling of the petition to stop the building
of 1500 new homes in Warsash, Locks Heath, Park Gate and Titchfield
Common.
The Chairman confirmed that to begin with Mrs Megginson would be invited,
as the lead petitioner to make her deputation to present the reasons for her
complaint.
The Chairman will then invite the Head of Democratic Services to present her
report and to explain how the advice was obtained as to how the petition
should be handled.
Members of the Scrutiny Board will then be able to ask any questions to clarify
matters raised by the deputation or in the officer’s report.
The Director of Planning and Regulation and the Monitoring Officer are also on
hand to answer any questions.
The Chairman informed the Board that Director of Finance and Resources
have been asked to intervene at any point in the meeting where he feels the
Board may be straying into matters outside the terms of the petition review.
Members were reminded that they should keep in mind that they weren’t here
to discuss the merits of the petition itself and whether or not we agree with
what the petition is asking the Council to consider.
The Chairman confirmed that the Scrutiny Board can only determine if the
petition has been handled appropriately, and that;

Page 28

Scrutiny Board

17 May 2018

The options open to members are either:
(a) agree that the steps taken by the Council in response to the submitted
petition were correct; or
(b) to determine if any or all of the reasons given for the complaint should
be upheld.
4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Board received a deputation from Mrs H Megginson in respect of item 6 –
Petition Complaint Review.
Mrs Megginson was thanked for her deputation.

6.

PETITION COMPLAINT REVIEW
The Board received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above.
The Board considered a report by the Head of Democratic Services on a
review of a complaint received regarding the handling of a petition.
The report outlined the details of the complaint and steps that have been taken
by the Democratic Services department from the very start of the receipt of the
petition.
Members asked questions of the Head of Democratic Services, the Director of
Planning and Regulation and the Monitoring Officer to clarify points raised in
both the report and the deputation that was received.
The Chairman confirmed that having discussed the points raised in the
complaint regarding the handling of the petition, the Scrutiny Board now had to
consider its options as set out in the report, that being either:
(a) agree that the steps taken by the Council in response to the submitted
petition were correct; or
(b) to determine if any or all of the reasons given for the complaint should
be upheld in which case the Scrutiny Board may use any of its powers
to deal with the matter, including instigating an investigation, making
recommendations to the Executive or arranging for the matter to be
considered at a meeting of the Council.
A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that the steps taken by the
Council in response to the submitted petition were correct, and was voted on
and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 1 against)
RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Board agree that the steps taken in response to
the submitted petition were correct, and therefore no further action is required.
Page 29

Scrutiny Board

7.

17 May 2018

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
The Board considered a report by the Director of Finance and Resources
which reviewed the Board’s work programme for 2018/19.
Members were asked to note the revisions to the work programme as outlined
in paragraph 2 of the report.
RESOLVED that the Board agree the work programme for 2018/19.

8.

RECEIVE MINUTES OF MEETINGS OF POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND
REVIEW PANELS
The Board was asked to receive the minutes of the Policy Development and
Review Panels held since 1 March 2018.
(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 7 March 2018 of Leisure and
Community Policy Development and Review Panel

The Chairman of the Leisure and Community Policy Development and Review
Panel, Councillor Mrs C L A Hockley was invited to present the minutes of the
meeting held on 7 March 2018.
It was AGREED the minutes be received.
(2)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 13 March 2018 of Planning and
Development Policy Development and Review Panel

The Chairman of the Planning and Development Policy Development and
Review Panel, Councillor P J Davies was invited to present the minutes of the
meeting held on 13 March 2018.
It was AGREED that the minutes be received.
(3)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 26 March 2018 of Streetscene Policy
Development and Review Panel

The Chairman of the Streetscene Policy Development and Review Panel,
Councillor Miss T G Harper, was invited to present the minutes of the meeting
held on 26 March 2018.
It was AGREED that the minutes be received.
9.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
The Chairman invited members to indicate if they wish to consider any other
item of business dealt with by the Executive since the last meeting of the
Board.
There were no other items of Executive Business considered.

Page 30

Scrutiny Board

17 May 2018
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.49 pm).

Page 31

Agenda Item 11(1)

Minutes of the
Planning Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 25 April 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor N J Walker (Chairman)
Councillor A Mandry (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors:

B Bayford, T M Cartwright, MBE, K D Evans, M J Ford, JP,
Mrs K Mandry and R H Price, JP

Also
Present:

Page 33

Planning Committee

1.

25 April 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology of absence was received from Councillor P J Davies.

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 21
March 2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman announced that this would be the last meeting for Councillors
Bayford and Mandry as they were retiring at the end of this municipal year. He
thanked them both for their services to the Committee over the years and
wished them well in their retirement.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In accordance with Standing Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct
Councillor T M Cartwright declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 6(1) – Drift
House, Brook Avenue, as one of the deputees is known to him.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Committee received a deputation from the following in respect of the
applications indicated and were thanked accordingly.

Name

Spokesperson
representing the
persons listed

Subject

Supporting
Minute
No/
or Opposing Application
the
No/Page No
Application

ZONE 1 –
2.30pm

Mr R Reay
(Agent)

DRIFT HOUSE BROOK
AVENUE WARSASH –
ERECTION OF
REPLACEMENT
DWELLING
(ALTERNATIVE TO
P/16/1415/FP)
INCLUDING TEO
DETACHED DOUBLE
GAREGE WITH FIRST
FLOOR
ACCOMMODATION
ABOVE, HARD & SOFT
LANDSCAPING, AND
RETROSPECTIVE
ALTERATIONS TO
GROUND LEVELS
Page 34

Supporting

6 (1)
P/18/0247/FP
Pg 22

Planning Committee

Mrs E
Osborne
Mrs
Clapperton

Mr & Mrs McInnes
Mr & Mrs Cameron
The Owner of
Hambles Edge
The Fareham
Society

25 April 2018
AND INSTALLATION
OF RAINWATER
HARVESTING
SYSTEM
-Ditto-

Opposing

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

ZONE 2 –
2.30pm
ZONE 3 –
2.30pm

6.

PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
AND
MISCELLANEOUS
INCLUDING AN UPDATE ON PLANNING APPEALS

MATTERS

The Committee noted a report by the Director of Planning and Regulation on
the development management matter applications and miscellaneous matters
including the information on Planning Appeals.
(1)

P/18/0247/FP - DRIFT HOUSE BROOK AVENUE WARSASH SO31
9HN

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
Councillor Cartwright declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as one of
the deputees is known to him.
The Committee expressed concern over issues arising from the previous
permitted application at this site and as such, requested that Officers bring a
report to a future meeting of the Planning Committee in respect of increases of
ground level at the site beyond those previously permitted, the rainwater
harvesting system and Japanese Knotweed.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to refuse
planning permission, subject to the first reason for refusal additionally referring
to the inadequacy of the proposed landscaping scheme and an additional
reason for refusal as follows:
(i) On the basis of the limited information provided in relation to the
proposed rainwater harvesting system, the Local Planning Authority
is not satisfied that the system will not lead to increased surface
water problems on neighbouring properties, to the detriment of the
enjoyment of those properties.
Was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED.
Page 35

Planning Committee

25 April 2018

Reasons for Refusal
The proposed development is contrary to Policies CS14 and CS17 of the
adopted Fareham Borough Core Strategy and Policies DSP2 an DSP6 of the
Fareham Borough Local Plan Part 2: Development Sites and Policies and is
unacceptable in that:
i)

By virtue of the height, design, width, resultant bulk and proximity of the
proposed dwelling to the site boundaries, and the inadequate
landscaping proposed within the site, the proposal would fail to respond
positively to and be respectful of the key characteristics of the area
including its landscape, scale, form and spaciousness. The proposal
would therefore be detrimental to the character of the area when viewed
from the River Hamble, the opposite side of the river, the public footpath
on the eastern side of the river and Brook Avenue; and

ii)

On the basis of the limited information provided in relation to the
proposed rainwater harvesting system, the Local Planning Authority is
not satisfied that the system will not lead to increased surface water
problems on neighbouring properties, to the detriment of the enjoyment
of those properties.

(2)

Q/0087/18 - IFA2 NATIONAL GRID LAND AT DAEDALUS AIRFIELD
LEE-ON-THE-SOLENT PO13 9YA

Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation that the
National Grid enters into a Deed of Variation to the legal agreement completed
under planning permission P/16/0557/OA, on terms drafted by the Solicitor to
the Council, to allow:
. National Grid to layout and deliver the western open space to the satisfaction
of the Council by no later than 18 months from the completion of the new
agreement.
. To pay a financial contribution of £110,000 for the provision of the play area.
. The play area financial contribution is to be paid no later than one month from
the completion of the new agreement and is to be index linked back to the
signing of the original agreement for the IFA2 hybrid planning permission.
was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that the National Grid enters into a DEED OF VARIATION to the
legal agreement completed under planning permission P/16/0557/OA on terms
drafted by the Solicitor to the Council, to allow:
. National Grid to layout and deliver the western open space to the satisfaction
of the Council by no later than 18 months from the completion of the new
agreement.
. To pay a financial contribution of £110,000 for the provision of the play area.
. The play area financial contribution is to be paid no later than one month from
the completion of the new agreement and is to be index back to the signing of
the original agreement for the IFA2 hybrid planning permission.
7.

PLANNING APPEALS
The committee noted the information in the report.
Page 36

Planning Committee

25 April 2018
(The meeting started at 2.30 pm
and ended at 3.46 pm).

Page 37

Agenda Item 11(2)

Minutes of the
Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Thursday, 10 May 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Mrs P M Bryant (Chairman)

Councillor

T M Cartwright, MBE (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Mrs S M Bayford, Miss S M Bell, F Birkett, T Davies,
M J Ford, JP, J S Forrest, Mrs C Heneghan, L Keeble,
Mrs K Mandry, Ms S Pankhurst, R H Price, JP and K D Evans
(deputising for I Bastable)

Also
Present:

Page 39

Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee

1.

10 May 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was received from Councillor I J Bastable.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee held on 27 March 2018 be confirmed and signed as a true
record.

3.

APPOINTMENT OF LICENSING PANEL
RESOLVED that
(a) a Licensing Panel be appointed for 2018/19 with those terms of
reference and delegated powers previously determined by the
Committee on 01 February 2005, as amended on 23 January 2007 and
subsequently confirmed by Council on 15 February 2007;
(b) Members of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee be
appointed to the Licensing Panel, such that it comprises the Chairman
and two other Members of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee, appointed on a rotating basis, subject to their having
completed the necessary training; and
(c) the Chairman of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee
preside at meetings of the Panel, with the Vice Chairman deputising as
occasion requires.

4.

APPOINTMENT OF TRADING CONCESSIONS PANEL
The Committee was reminded that it had decided to appoint a Trading
Concessions Panel to deal with occasional issues from the grant of
concessions in West Street, Fareham. The Committee was invited to appoint
the Panel for 2018/19.
As the position regarding the allocation of seats to political groups needed to
be clarified before the Committee could appoint Members to the Trading
Concessions Panel it was agreed that this item be deferred to the next
meeting.
RESOLVED that the appointment of the Trading Concessions Panel be
deferred to the next meeting.
(The meeting started at 3.05 pm
and ended at 3.15 pm).

Page 40

